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QUESTIONS & ANSWERS: 
 
Q: On page 3, the RFP lists technicians as groups targeted for training, 

however, later on page 3, then again on page 4 it lists a bachelor degree in 
engineering under prerequisites.  Please clarify the target audience for 
training. 

A: On page 3 under Academy Objectives, the RFP indicates that the Michigan 
Academy for Green Mobility targets incumbent engineers, engineering students, 
incumbent technicians and technician program students.  This is background 
information and refers to the Academy as a whole, which will be made up of 
multiple training options and pathways.  This specific RFP is for Hybrid Electric 
Vehicle Battery Engineering.  In the Requirements section, the RFP identifies the 
target audience for this specific RFP is engineers and the prerequisites are a 
bachelor degree in engineering.  

 
 
Q: Are degreed engineers who are unemployed eligible for educational funding 

from the No Worker Left Behind (NWLB) Program? 
A: Yes, degreed engineers who are unemployed can be eligible for educational 

funding from the NWLB.  Who Can Participate in NWLB? 
 Any person who is currently unemployed; or 
 Any person who has received a notice of termination or layoff from 

employment; or 
 Any employed person whose family income is $40,000 or less. 
 Participants must be at least 18 years old, must not have graduated from 

high school in the last two years, and must not be full-time college 
students (applies to 18-23 year olds only). 

 Additional information about No Worker Left Behind can be found on the 
NWLB website at www.michigan.gov/nwlb. 

 
 
Q: Are degreed engineers who are unemployed eligible for educational funding 

from the No Worker Left Behind (NWLB) Program for non-credit courses 
and/or certificates? 

A: Yes, NWLB funds can be used for education and training through the Michigan 
Academy for Green Mobility even if they are non-credit because it meets 
employer demand in a prioritized area.  For-credit courses or courses that lead to a 
degree or certification are preferred. 
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Q: Please clarify the prerequisite of a bachelor degree in engineering and sub-
classifications such as chemical engineering, civil engineering, etc. 

A: The minimum prerequisite required by the RFP is a bachelor or masters degree in 
any engineering field.  Applicants may submit proposals with more stringent 
prerequisites that require students to have degrees in a specific discipline or 
classification of engineering, however that is not required. 

 
 
Q: Can the due date of May 26 be pushed back (again) to mid-June?  With all 

the supplier/OEM shut downs in July – will it make sense for the training to 
start in August? 

A: No, the due date is firm.  Employers were clear on the time line for implementing 
training.  The target audiences for the training are incumbent and unemployed 
engineers.  With the supplier and OEM shut downs, it may actually make it easier 
for engineers to participate. 

 
 
Q: Is training 100 – 200 students required in the first 14-week training? 
A: No, all 100 – 200 do not have to be trained at one time.  100 – 200 is the total that 

should be trained in the first year of the program. 
 
 
Q: Are there target regions for the program? 
A: There is not a specific region identified as a priority, but the reality is that 

Southeast Michigan is where the demand for the majority of automotive engineers 
resides.  We expect that, since this is a demand driven approach to workforce 
training, the training will occur where demand is greatest, and currently that is in 
Southeast Michigan.  Partnerships and innovative delivery methods are 
encouraged to help applicants outside of Southeast Michigan provide education 
and training solutions where the demand warrants it. 

 
 
Q: What are the requirements for the instructors or teachers that will deliver 

the training? 
A: The education institutions will have their own set of standards that instructors 

must meet.  Those standards should include some combination of experience and 
knowledge that qualifies instructors to effectively teach in this area. 
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Q: What level of funding is available for this RFP?  Will there be just one 
award? 

A: This RFP does not provide funding for the development or delivery of the 
solicited education and training program.  Institutions will be awarded a 
designation as a recognized training provider within the Michigan Academy for 
Green Mobility.  The future costs associated with the education and training 
program can be recovered through student tuition and fees.  Funding for training 
may be available to qualified students through Michigan’s No Worker Left 
Behind Green Jobs Initiative.   Additionally, while not tied to this specific RFP, 
Innovation Grant funds may be available to institutions who are delivering 
training in unique and innovative ways. 

 
 
Q: Please clarify:  the primary target audience is not displaced workers, but 

currently employed engineers; secondary audience are displaced workers as 
determined by DELEG via NWLB? 

A: Employers indicate that up-skilling current engineers is their first priority.  As 
capacity allows for more participants, we expect our Michigan Works! Agency 
(MWA) partners to assist in identifying displaced workers for training. 

 
 
Q: How often or, what will be the schedule for RFPs throughout the year?  

Quarterly, Yearly, etc.?  When will the next RFP be? 
A: We polled automakers and identified the areas where there are training gaps.  

Accelerated training to support Hybrid Electric Vehicle Battery Engineering was 
unanimously identified as the top priority.  Once the education and training 
secured through this RFP is up and running we will survey the automakers to 
determine the next area of focus.  The RFP timeline must remain flexible, catering 
to the employers’ needs. 

 
 
Q: Will DELEG share a draft of the Training Services Agreement? 
A: We do not send out contracts or agreements pre-proposal.  There are areas that 

may require negotiations with the successful applicant(s), so the template may 
ultimately be changed. 

 
 
Q: If employers do not fill a class, will it be open to NWLB candidates, and be 

funded? 
A: We are aware that there needs to be a minimum level of participants per class to 

achieve efficiencies.  Employers and MWAs will assist in recruiting students to 
fill the classes.  We anticipate a mix between incumbent workers and NWLB 
eligible candidates. 
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Q: The RFP stated the preferred credential at the end of the program would be 
graduate credit.  Therefore, the role for community colleges in this RFP is 
based on partnering with a university, only, correct? 

A: Yes, universities and community colleges are encouraged to partner to provide the 
best array of education and training program features. 

 
Q: The RFP is due 5/26 and we would be notified within 30 days if we were 

approved – so training could start as early as July 1st? 
A: Yes, training could potentially start as early as July 1st. 
 
 
Q: Are any of the employers that you have been in contact with willing to pay 

for their workers to go through this program? 
A: This academy is a public-private partnership.  As such, we expect that following 

the submission of proposals we will meet with our employer partners and discuss 
the expected costs, and the appropriate level of contribution needed from them in 
order to assure the sustainability of the academy.  This conversation will include 
how to fund their employees’ training. 

 
 
Q: Does that mean contribute to DELEG or to the recipient of the RFP? 
A: Employer contributions will go directly to the education and training institution.  

DELEG’s contribution, if applicable will be NWLB funding through the network 
of MWAs, which will go directly to the education and training institution as well. 

 
 
Q: How many awards are expected? 
A: The goal is to train 100 – 200 students.  The RFP requires that applicants be able 

to train at least 100 students.  Based on that, one or two proposals will be selected 
to provide the education and training. 

 
 
Q: Please clarify:  100 – 200 participants should be trained within one year 

starting when the winning RFP is selected? 
A: The one year period will run from July 15, 2009 to July 15, 2010. 
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Q: Please clarify whether direct funds are available from this program and how 
this fits into the announced Green Jobs Initiative, a $6 million effort to 
support employers and training programs for jobs in designated alternative 
energy/green jobs industries. 

A: Direct funds are not available through this RFP.  The $6 million for the Green 
Jobs Initiative includes: 

 $3 million for training individuals for jobs in alternative energy/green jobs 
industries through NWLB,  

 $1.5 million to assist in the development of Green Sector Skills Alliances 
like the Michigan Academy for Green Mobility, and  

 $1.5 million to help community colleges, universities, and other training 
institutions build their capacity to develop and provide training for green 
jobs. 

 
 
Q: Does this RFP fund course development and/or delivery? 
A: No, this RFP does not provide funding for the development or delivery of the 

solicited education and training program. While not tied to this specific RFP, 
Innovation Grant funds may be available to education and training institutions 
that are delivering training in unique and innovative ways. 
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